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ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State's response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1
Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Tia Snyder
Contracts Officer

	Question Number
	Page Number
	Section Number
	Questions & Answers for RFP15-3109T

	1. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.
Are you good with [Vendor Name] using the [Vendor Name] WSCA-NASPO Data Comm contract [Contract Number] to cover the attached RFP [RFP15-3109T].

A.
The Contract attached to the solicitation will be the one utilized for these requested services. The contract will be a standalone contract and cannot reference a WSCA-NASPO contact.

	2. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.
Will the MDT/State consider modifying the requirement for all references to be within the last 5 years to one that requires at least one reference to be within the past 5 years? 


NOTE:  The rationale for this request is that while there is a need to have currency in the practice of enterprise architecture consulting, it may be overly restrictive to ask that all references be within the last 5 years.  It would be beneficial to the State to have access to references for work done more than 5 years ago for the following reasons: 

•
It demonstrates/validates if the contractor has been actively performing this type of work for a significant amount of time.

•
It demonstrates/validates if the impact and value of the contractor’s work in EA is long lasting and can be evolved by the client after the engagement.

•
It offers smaller, specialized companies the ability to showcase their most relevant work which may have been performed outside of the 5 year term.

•
It allows increased competition and participation in the procurement without compromising the currency concern.
A. 
MDT will not modify the requirement that references submitted are for services provided within the last 5 years.  The value of this requirement is that it will demonstrate whether a company has been actively performing this type of work, that they have experience appropriate to perform the requested work, and  that they have knowledgeable resources still available that can perform the requested service.

	3. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.
Will the state consider eliminating or exempting all respondents or small firm respondents from the audited overhead rate requirement?


NOTE:  It is our understanding that the rules and regulations would allow for such exemptions.  Also the burden this requirement places on small, otherwise qualified firms, to incur the cost of such an audit would reduce competition thereby reducing the effectiveness of the procurement.  
A.
The State may consider eliminating this requirement during the contract refinement process. See response to question 4.

	4. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.
A) Is the overhead audit a requirement for the submission of a proposal or only on the selected vendor? 


B) If it is a requirement of the proposal, will the state consider only requiring the overhead rate audit for the selected vendor?  


NOTE:  This would serve the purpose of the audit without burdening all bidders with having to provide an audit of overhead rates.  Language could reflect that the selected vendor’s final contracted overhead rate must be substantiated by an audit but this would not require an audit prior to selection.
A.
Overhead audit is a requirement for the selected vendor. See response to question 3.

	5. 
	21
	5.1
	Q.
Please confirm that if a respondent’s proposal does not include an overhead rate as part of costs, in accordance with the respondent’s pricing policy, there is no need for a proof of an overhead audit.
A.
That is correct. See responses to questions 3 and 4.

	6. 
	25
	6.2
	Q.
Will the state consider eliminating or exempting all respondents or small firm respondents from the approved indirect cost plan requirement?
A.

The State may consider eliminating this requirement during the contract refinement process.

	7. 
	25
	Appendix Contract Section  6.2
	Q.
Please confirm that if a respondent’s proposal does not include any indirect costs as part of costs, in accordance with the respondent’s pricing policy, there is no need for an approved indirect cost plan.

A.
That is correct.

	8. 
	23
	6.2.3
	Q.
Is the cost evaluation methodology as described herein complete?  Will the state explain how it intends to evaluate each of the detailed cost information being requested?  For example, are the cost elements by category, person, task, etc. evaluated individually or will all cost points be assigned solely by applying the total cost proposed to the presented comparative algorithm?
A.
The cost evaluation methodology is complete.  The total project cost will be used for calculation of the cost points.  

	9. 
	23
	6.2.3
	Q.
To ensure compliance with the details requested and to ensure a sound comparison among proposals, will the MDT provide a template, form, or example of an acceptable cost proposal demonstrating the desired breakouts and levels of detail?
A.
See Budget Example attachment. This is only an example and Offerors will not be held to this example.

	10. 
	n/a
	n/a
	Q.
Is there an incumbent vendor for this project?
A.
No.

	11. 
	4
	
	Q.
Re. Schedule of Events Section: Your projected timeline estimates an award in March 2015, which would probably mean a project start date in the April 2015 timeframe. Has your evaluation team determined a completion milestone date and, if so, what might that be? Are there requirements from US DOT FHA to complete the project by a specific date?

A.
The last paragraph of Section 3.1, Scope and Objectives states: “Time is of the essence; the ideal timeframe through delivery of the draft final products is 12-months.”  MDT is requesting that a best effort be made to complete the EA process, including delivery of draft final work products, within 12 months of project initiation.  

Based upon an assumed project start date of April 2015 MDT would anticipate completion of the EA project, including delivery of the draft final work products, by April of 2016.  There are no requirements from the US DOT FHA to complete the project by a specific date.

	12. 
	6, 14
	3.1
	Q.
There are numerous references to the State’s Research Project Manager. Is this role a full-time project management role? Is it the intent for MDT to be the active project manager of record for this effort, or is MDT asking offerors (i.e. consultant) to provide project management as a specific service for this project? Is it MDT’s view to have a PM for the successful offeror and one for MDT work jointly?
A.
There is a MDT Research Project Manager assigned to the project. The MDT Research Project Manager serves as the direct liaison between the technical panel and consultant, communicating panel decisions to the consultant.  The MDT Research Project Manager serves as a conduit for all information flowing between the technical panel as a whole or individual technical panel members, and the contractor.  Ensures project stays within scope and budget, and issues are addressed in a timely fashion and manages contractual compliance.

	13. 
	15
	3.3.1
	Q.
Re. “MDT business and system owners”: Can you please identify the approximate number of “business” and (separately) “system” owners? If MDT does not consider this population as the “interview population” and there are other participants, what is the estimated total population, among all stakeholders and subject matter experts, MDT expects the successful offeror to engage in interviews and facilitated sessions?

A.
Information Services staff (ISD) meets monthly or more frequently with system owners and should be used as an initial resource to identify business contacts prior to setting up interviews.  Not counting top tier executives in the agency, between 90 and 130 interviews may be anticipated, however that determination is the sole responsibility of the successful offeror, and multiple meetings with any single system owner may be needed.  As a practical matter, business contacts can be representative of several business systems, and coordinated meetings with several business contacts can reduce the interview counts.

	14. 
	14, 15
	3.1, 3.3.2
	Q.
The ODOT PDF document referred in this section is noted as a “representative example” of another state’s effort to define an Enterprise Architecture strategy. Have MDT personnel considered any of the content within this ODOT document as “best practice” that MDT wishes were utilized within the MDT organization?
A.
MDT’s current technology environment is very different from that of Ohio’s.  Not with-standing the significant differences between these two entities, generally accepted EA best practices can include recommended improvements in business processes and practices, technical recommendations related to platforms and tools, strategies for improving information sharing and data management and so on.  These examples are just a few of the possible benefits an EA strategy can provide, and MDT has not attempted to align itself with ODOT’s EA strategies.

	15. 
	14, 15
	3.1, 3.3.2
	Q.
Is MDT aware of ODOT’s “next steps” (either completed or in process) after this document was published? If ODOT taken concrete steps to pursue those recommendations, has MDT considered these steps as likely implementation candidates?
A.
No, MDT is not aware of ODOT’s active response to their completed EA Plan or their progress in implementing recommendations received as a result of their EA effort.  As previously stated in response 14, MDT is a very different environment than that of ODOT; therefore this agency has not considered any recommendation provided to ODOT as an implementation candidate.  

As a generalization, highly abstracted strategic EA goals may be applicable to both ODOT and MDT, and the successful respondent can make their own comparisons and if applicable, identify similarities they feel are important to share.

	16. 
	17
	3.4.1.1.7.4
	Q.
Re. “reviewed by a person”: Is this person an MDT person or from the Consultant?
A.
This is the consultant.  Spell check and other software do not catch all mistakes in documents.

	17. 
	17, 18
	3.4.1.2.5 and

3.4.1.2.6
	Q.
Re. "FINAL REPORT AND COVER PICTURE" and "RESEARCH PROJECT SUMMARY REPORT": May we assume that the latter is to be considered an executive summary of the former? Also, is the “PICTURE” an image to be supplied by MDT?
A.
Yes, it is an executive summary, but there is a requirement format.  The consultant supplies the cover picture.

	18. 
	18
	3.4.1.2.6.1
	Q.
Re. “what we found, and what the researchers recommend": Is there an inherent difference between “we” and “the researchers”? Are they not one in the same?
A.
There is a difference.  ”What we found” reports the results, which are what they are. However, “what the researcher’s recommend’ are the researchers recommended implementation actions. These recommendations will be discussed, along with MDT’s response to these recommendations. MDT may decide to accept all, some, or none of the recommendations. Given this, the “we” and the “researchers” may not be the same.

	19. 
	21
	5.1
	Q.
Re. “each expense category": Can you elaborate on this? Are there specific categories MDT wishes to track? If so, what are they?
A.
See Budget Example (Attachment A) for examples of expense categories (this is an example only, offerors do not have to use this example when submitting their response to the RFP). The expense categories used in each proposal may include others and/or may not include some in the example.

	20. 
	21
	5.1
	Q.
Re. “each Deliverable and meeting”: While the tasks and deliverables are clearly identified in the RFP in Section 3, it is difficult to estimate the number of facilitated meetings with stakeholders and, more important (as has been our experience), the numerous follow-up meetings—some facilitated; others informal—required to clarify and refine requirements and other information pertinent to the completion of a specific task and/or deliverable. For example, in order to complete the task “3.3.3 Situation Analysis,” an offeror may propose, say, 440 person-hours of Consultant time. Within this, there may be 20 clock hours of meeting time where stakeholders are asked to be present. Does MDT wish to have these 20 hours broken out separately (thereby possibly reducing the 440 person-hours to 420)? Is MDT agreeable to a broad estimate of meeting time (i.e. hours) in order to develop a viable (and not unwieldy) cost estimate?
A.
MDT is agreeable to a broad estimate of meeting time as needed to develop a viable cost estimate.  MDT does seek from the consultant some description of the process they anticipate following, with an example of hours needed to complete the task based upon the example.

	21. 
	15
	3.2
	Q.
In our typical practice, research is a supporting (and prerequisite) activity that serves to help develop and document an architecture plan appropriate to the client.  However, this section frequently refers to the effort as a research project without any mention an architecture plan, of any sort, implying that research is the primary effort under the contract. Please re-state and describe the main goal of this effort.
A.
The RFP 15-3109T, “Development of Strategic Enterprise Architecture Design and Implementation Plan” is being conducted as a Research Project under the authority of the Research Section.  The Research Section performs research projects regularly for MDT, and their primary focus is support of those research efforts for MDT.
The language within the RFP is generalized for all Research Projects, not just this EA RFP.

As shared in this question, “research is a supporting (and prerequisite) activity that serves to help develop and document an architecture plan…”  
The RFP requires the following based upon section 3.3:
•
A project plan and schedule to perform the work of the EA project;

•
Literature review;

•
Complete description of the ‘as-is’ state of MDT’s current IT architecture;

•
A proposed EA design recommendation which is characterized as MDT’s ‘to-be’ state;

•
An implementation plan to achieve the proposed EA ‘to-be’ design; and finally

•
Identification of strategic options/initiatives in support of ongoing EA planning and management.

	22. 
	15
	3.2, para 2
	Q.
Include background information on the research topic. Summarize the findings of a preliminary literature search and state the relationship of the proposed study to prior and current research. 


Is the “preliminary literature search” considered part of the scope of work (and factored into the cost)?  Is it intended to be new research done just for this RFP (at no cost to MDT), or does a summary of prior work/research in this area meet the intent?
A. The results of a “preliminary literature search” are to be included as a part of the response to this RFP. At a minimum The TRB’s Transportation Research International Documentation (TRID, http://trid.trb.org/) database should be searched as a part of this preliminary literature search; this database contains information on completed research and research in progress. It is expected that consultants with experience on this topic will be familiar with research, best practices, etc. related to this topic. Tasks 3.3.2 will expand on this “preliminary literature search” and will include more of a critical review of the literature, state of the practice, and state of the art.

	23. 
	15
	3.2, para 2
	Q.
“Summarize the findings of a preliminary literature search and state the relationship of the proposed study to prior and current research.”


Does “proposed study” imply the response should include a separate proposal for a research plan indicating how the bidder will perform the research?
A.
No, one proposal is expected to include all requirements of this RFP. See answer above for Question #22.

	24. 
	15
	3.2, para 2
	Q.
“Summarize the findings of a preliminary literature search and state the relationship of the proposed study to prior and current research.”


Does “current research” refer to the “preliminary literature search”?
A.
Yes, it refers to prior (completed) and current (on-going) research.  Refer to answer for Question #22.

	25. 
	15
	3.2, para 3
	Q.
The third paragraph talks about the research and its benefits, without mentioning an architecture plan. Please clarify the meaning/significance of the sentences below:


“Identify potential benefits (i.e., business case) expected from the research.”  Is this intended literally, as a business case for the research separate from producing a Strategic EA Plan?  Or does this mean the benefits from a successful Strategic EA Plan as implemented by the Implementation Plan?
A.
No.  The purpose of including the business case in the proposal gives the Offeror the opportunity to briefly express that they understand the importance of this project to MDT. 

	26. 
	15
	3.2, para 3
	Q.
“Include how the research results can be used, and by whom, to improve transportation practice.”  


Should this be interpreted literally as looking for direct link between the research results and actual transportation practices, as opposed to internal governance and operational practices within MDT?  Or between the resulting Strategic EA Plan and actual transportation practices?  Or rather how a working EA Plan leads to better decision-making, governance and operational practices within MDT, which in turn lead to better transportation practices?
A.
The results of this project will affect internal governance and operational practices within MDT, which will then affect transportation practices.

	27. 
	15
	3.2, para 3
	Q.
“The business case addresses such items as:..” 


Is the RFP response (or a section of it) considered the “business case”?  Or is a separate business case required to be submitted with the RFP response?
A.
The business case is a part of the RFP response; see response to question 25.

	28. 
	15
	3.2, para 3
	Q.
“…[W]ill the problem continue unless research is done; can or should the research be postponed to another year;…” These questions are included in the list of items to answer in the business case.  


Are these still questions that need to be answered?  Is forgoing or postponing development of a Strategic EA Plan still a viable option/consideration?
A.
MDT intends to award a contract for this project.  This is the area where understanding of the problem and/or need to MDT is described. See response to question 25.

	29. 
	15-16
	3.3
	Q.
Since only one task in section 3.3 mentions research (e.g., Literature Review), what is the intended relationship between the research discussed in this section and the ultimate Strategic Enterprise Architecture Plan discussed elsewhere?  Is a research report considered a separate, required deliverable from the architecture plan and artifacts listed in the Tasks?
A.
Yes it is a separate deliverable.  The final report will document the entire effort for this project. See Section 3.4 in the RFP.

	30. 
	22
	5.1
	Q.
Our firm does not have a federally approved overhead rate and does not intend to seek one. Would a specification of fully loaded rates which include profit be acceptable?
A.
Yes.

	31. 
	10
	2.2
	Q.
Is the Offeror who wins the EA contract excluded from bidding on future technology contracts related to the Enterprise Architecture Design and Implementation Plan?
A.
No.

	32. 
	21
	5.1
	Q.
The RFP currently requires that for all services identified in this RFP, the proposed budget must, at a minimum, include itemized costs, for the following:

· each task;

· each expense category;

· each Deliverable and meeting, except for the Project kick-off meeting, each monthly progress reports, task reports, and the final report; these itemized Deliverables and meetings may be deducted from the total Project budget if, at the sole discretion of MDT, those events are deemed unnecessary and do not take place;

· number of hours of each person assigned to the Project;

· hourly and benefit rates for each person;

· overhead rate (proof of federally audited rate should be provided); 

· travel expenses; and

· all other direct and indirect costs, including profit.


[Company Name] has Federally-approved GSA rates that include all expenses. We can itemize cost by task, expense category, deliverable, hours and hourly rate for each person on the project. 


We CANNOT itemize cost by hourly benefit rates, overhead rate, travel expense and direct/indirect costs with profit because our accounting systems are not structured to provide this kind of detail.


We typically perform only fixed price, deliverables based and T&M engagements. We do not perform cost plus consulting projects, even in our Federal Industry. 


Will MDOT change this requirement to a) make this a completely fixed-price deliverables-based contract or 2) remove the requirements to itemize cost by hourly benefit rates, overhead rate, travel expense and direct/indirect costs with profit? If this requirement is not modified, [Company Name] will not be able to bid on this opportunity.
A.
No, MDT needs to know how much is budgeted for travel and other types of expenses. 

	33. 
	26-27
	Appendix A, Section 8.0
	Q.
Section 8.0 Hold Harmless – This solicitation is requesting a broad indemnity with no pre-condition that harm be caused or occasioned by some negligence on the part of Contractors.  Will the State consider modifying its Indemnification Request to add a standard of negligence as a pre-condition to obligation to provide indemnity?
A.
No. There may be actionable causes other than negligence.

	34. 
	27
	Appendix A, Section 8.6
	Q.
The State is also requesting in section 8.6 that they be allowed to step in and provide a defense to any claim and that Contractor assumes their legal costs.  Most insurers pick their own Counsel and will not agree to pay for a client’s counsel once they assume responsibility for defending a claim. Will the State consider eliminating the last sentence of section 8.6?
A.
No.  The questioned language has an antecedent condition.  If the interests of the State are not being adequately protected by counsel chosen by the Consultant or its insurance company, then the State may enter the litigation and charge for litigation expenses and attorney's fees.  The State is willing to delete the following language: “or if principles of governmental or public law are involved.”

	35. 
	27-28
	Appendix A, Section 9.1
	Q.
Section 9.0 Insurance - Subsection 9.1.4 requires Contractors insurer’s to notify the State directly of the cancellation of Contractors insurance.  No insurance provider will do this for additional insurers. Will the State modify or remove this requirement?
A.
No. The State does not believe the following statement to be true: “No insurance provider will do this for additional insurers.”  If the successful offeror proves the statement to be true, modification of the requirement will be considered.

	36. 
	32
	Appendix A, Section 12.0
	Q.
Section 12.0 IP Ownership – This section is claiming ownership of anything contractor creates while working on this project.  Will the State revise this provision to provide State ownership of final Deliverables for which they have paid and a license to use pre-existing Contractor owned IP embodied in Deliverable?
A.
Yes, the state will consider language to this effect.

	37. 
	N/A
	N/A
	Q.
Will the State (1) allow work to be performed on a Fixed Price basis; (2) Add a Limitation of Liability provision; and (3) agree to entertain the negotiation of clarifications to the solicitations standard terms?
A.
(1) No. (2) No. MDT cannot even consider such a clause without knowing which portion of the contract would be modified or in what manner it would be modified; (3) Probably not, unless the requirement is proven to be impossible or unreasonable.

	38. 
	
	
	Q.
There is a broken link (404 Error on this web page) – referenced on the top of page 18 in RFP. Can you please supply a working link?:


3.4.1.2.6.2           A sample report can be viewed at: http://www.mdt.mt.gov/research/docs/reconfig/project_summary.pdf
A. Here is another link

http://www.mdt.mt.gov/other/research/external/docs/research_proj/cmaq/PROJECT_SUMMARY_13.PDF.

	39. 
	
	
	Q.
What are we to assume in writing the proposal, of the knowledge of the reviewing/scoring team regarding enterprise architecture? What function does each team member currently perform, and what EA expertise do they have?
A.
The reviewing/scoring team is comprised of a composite knowledge-base that represents all MDT business domains, including IT.  The team that will be scoring the RFP responses will include business subject matter experts representing Engineering, Planning, Maintenance, Accounting/Admin, IT, and also Federal Highways.  The IT representation includes the CIO for MDT, as well as the IT’s primary EA representative. This team is subject to change at the discretion of MDT before the evaluation process begins.

	40. 
	
	
	Q.
What is meant by the term “research” in the opening sentence of the third paragraph in the section 3.1 Scope and Objectives: “The objective of this research….”
A.
The term “research” is synonymous with project which is defined with the proposal.

	41. 
	28
	Appendix A, 9.1.12
	The State amends the contract language in section 9.1.12 of the Contract, Appendix A. New language underlined:
9.1.12
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY. For all motor vehicles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the Consultant, the Consultant shall purchase and maintain coverage with split limits of $1,000,000 per person (personal injury), $1,000,000 per accident occurrence (personal injury), and $100,000 per accident occurrence (property damage), OR combined single limits of $3,000,000 per occurrence to cover such claims as may be caused by the negligent acts of the Consultant or its officers, agents, representatives, assigns, subconsultants or Employees of subconsultants.

	42. 
	35
	Appendix A, 17.5.3
	The State amends the contract language in section 17.5.3 of the Contract, Appendix A. New language underlined:
17.5.3
STOP WORK ORDER.  THE STATE MAY, AT ANY TIME, BY WRITTEN ORDER TO CONTRACTOR REQUIRE CONTRACTOR TO STOP ANY OR ALL PARTS OF THE WORK REQUIRED BY THIS CONTRACT FOR THE PERIOD OF DAYS INDICATED BY THE STATE AFTER THE ORDER IS DELIVERED TO CONTRACTOR.  THE ORDER MUST BE SPECIFICALLY IDENTIFIED AS A STOP WORK ORDER ISSUED UNDER THIS CLAUSE.  UPON RECEIPT OF THE ORDER, CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY COMPLY WITH ITS TERMS AND TAKE ALL REASONABLE STEPS TO MINIMIZE THE INCURRENCE OF COSTS ALLOCABLE TO THE WORK COVERED BY THE ORDER DURING THE PERIOD OF WORK STOPPAGE.  IF A STOP WORK ORDER ISSUED UNDER THIS CLAUSE IS CANCELED OR THE PERIOD OF THE ORDER OR ANY EXTENSION EXPIRES, CONTRACTOR SHALL RESUME WORK.  THE STATE RESEARCH PROJECT MANAGER SHALL MAKE THE NECESSARY ADJUSTMENT IN THE DELIVERY SCHEDULE OR CONTRACT PRICE, OR BOTH, AND THIS CONTRACT SHALL BE AMENDED IN WRITING ACCORDINGLY.


"An Equal Opportunity Employer"

